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President’s Report

The 2013/14 year marked the beginning
of a new era for our designation and
has set the scene to further distinguish
Chartered Accountants on a global
scale. Significant milestones for
members include:
• A successful vote to create
Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand
• Significant progress in bringing
together the operational activities
of NZICA and the ICAA as part of
the transition to our new organisation
• The launch of our new Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand brand and member
magazine, Acuity, in July 2014.

OUR NEW GLOBAL VOICE
We are a connected network of
professionals with over 100,000 members
valued and respected around the globe
as trusted leaders in business and
finance, and our new brand reinforces
the pre-eminence of our designation.
Last year’s historic vote was the first
step in creating this new future for our
members and a stronger voice globally.
It also provided a fresh opportunity to
improve our offerings for members,
including greater investment in education,
services, policy, advocacy and thought
leadership.
With the launch of Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand, we have built
on the heritage of our two organisations in
upholding the CA designation. Our focus
is on prioritising our education and lifelong
learning, principled leadership in terms of
professional integrity in the public interest,
innovation in the way we deliver thought
leadership and improving all aspects
of our service to our members.

THANK YOU

Together we are better placed to make
our mark in an increasingly globalised
and competitive world. As the Australian
and New Zealand governments
collaborate to drive closer economic
integration, our organisation will be
uniquely placed to advise on vital
business and economic matters.

It has been an honour to be the 2014
President and work with such a dedicated
group of people. I would like to thank
the leadership and wider team for their
professionalism and dedication to serving
our members as we transition to our new
organisation.

As part our brand launch we created a
new and inspiring magazine. I’m proud of
Acuity, as a source of economic, finance
and business insights for our members
and the wider business community.
Acuity will amplify the voice of our
organisation and our members in the
thought leadership space and will be in
the hands of opinion leaders, regulators,
decision makers and politicians.

The transition has been an extremely
busy period for the outgoing Councils
and Boards in both countries, and for
members on the Council Designate
and Board Designate of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand.
I’d like to take this opportunity to thank
all of my colleagues for their contribution
and support of our organisation and
the profession.

RESULTS

I also want to acknowledge and thank
our Chief Executive Officer, Lee White,
who, as a fellow member, is passionately
dedicated to leading our profession.

In the 2014 financial year the ICAA
generated a surplus of $0.5 million
(2013: $2.3 million deficit) on revenue
of $97.1 million (up 1.0% on 2013).
The surplus was achieved as a result
of improved delivery of online services
and events compared to manual
processes in previous years and lower
program development expenses than
in 2013. The surplus is after including
premerger expenses of $6.0 million.
The ICAA remains in a strong financial
position with net assets of $64.5 million
(up $9.5 million on 2013) including closing
cash reserves of $46.3 million.

Mel Ashton FCA
President

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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Chief Executive Officer Report

I am extremely pleased and honoured to
lead our profession as we embark on our
new global direction, and continue to be
grateful and appreciative of the support
and advice that I received from members
in my role as Chief Executive Officer.
Our journey has been remarkable with
significant success over a short period
of time. This truly has been a unique
experience.
In October 2013, members voted
overwhelmingly in favour of creating
Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand. Since the vote we have
worked tirelessly on delivering on our
commitment to provide a trans-Tasman
service organisation for the benefit of
our 100,000-strong members across
the globe.
Our members are part of a highly
respected professional network of
trusted advisors and leaders in the global
business and finance community. Every
time I’m fortunate enough to meet one
of our members, or a business leader
with a Chartered Accountant working for
them, I am happily reminded of the ability
of Chartered Accountants to exceed the
diverse needs and expectations of clients
and the businesses and industries we
work in.
I am proud of the recognition and
pre-eminence that the Chartered
Accounting designation has among the
global community. Most people know of
someone who has been touched by the
‘CA effect’ and the incredible results that
Chartered Accountants deliver.

6
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HIGH-CALIBRE
LEADERSHIP TEAMS
Over the past year I have focused
on forming Trans Tasman leadership
teams to deliver on our key strategic
projects, in particular education, member
engagement and thought leadership
initiatives. These teams have been
constructed on a fresh blend of talent
and experiences drawn from many
different career paths.
I feel privileged to be leading a dynamic
team of high calibre professionals who
are dedicated to ensuring our
organisation continues to lead the
profession with such professional and
technical proficiency and influence.

MEMBER BENEFITS
I am very proud of our new brand and
its attributes. It is contemporary, but it is
also grounded in the tradition and preeminence of our CA designation.
In establishing our new brand we are
responding to the unique challenges and
opportunities of today. We will build on
the prestige of the designation to provide
cutting-edge thought leadership, tailored
services and products and a stronger
global presence.

Our global voice is reflected in Acuity, your
new member magazine, which provides
fresh insights and innovative thinking
from influential business people, leading
economists and award winning journalists.
Members have also enjoyed some of the
fiscal benefits of Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand with full
Australia Chartered Accountants annual
membership fees generally reduced for
the 2014/15 year by 19 per cent overall.

ADVOCACY AND
THOUGHT LEADERSHIP
Our thought leadership program,
headlined by future[inc], seeks to frame
the major public policy challenges and
issues facing Australia and New Zealand.
In September last year we released two
papers that examined the big issues
confronting Australia in an election year,
An economic policy platform for the next
term of government and The first 100
days; both designed to assist Australia’s
political leaders shape the agenda and
priorities for a stronger economy.
One of the main focuses of our broader
business leadership has been the
advocacy work we undertake to ensure
the best outcomes for the benefit of
the public, members and the profession
overall. Last year we delivered 233
submissions to government, standardsetters and regulators. The outcome of
this work can be seen in the important
policy developments in the areas of
auditing, reporting, insolvency, taxation
and financial services.

It gave me great pleasure to confirm
to members the approval of our five
year limitation of liability scheme. I am
extremely proud of the collective effort of
members who have provided data, along
with the tireless work of the Professional
Standards team who have conducted
extensive consultation with member
groups, regulators, the insurance industry
and the Professional Standards Council.
The achievement typifies the importance
of member collaboration which is
something that Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand will continue
to prioritise.

THE NEXT GENERATION
I am particularly focused on ensuring
the next generation of the sharpest minds
in accounting and business will strive
to obtain the ‘CA effect’. That is why we
launched Mission Exceptional in 2013,
a trans-Tasman competition that affords
students the opportunity to put their
university-acquired knowledge into action,
by tasking them to solve real business
challenges.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

THANK YOU

• Endorsement by the membership
of the strategic direction
• Establishing a team of senior leaders
with diverse skills and experience
• Establishing platforms to enhance
member service and engagement
• Developing and supporting members
in Asia
• Growing an exciting, contemporary
new brand

I feel privileged to be surrounded
by a dynamic group of people who
are dedicated to delivering on our
commitment to members. Being a
member-centric organisation means
members are at the core of every decision
we make. The values and attributes that
derive from the work that Chartered
Accountants do every day is evident in
our new organisation and is what we
will represent.

• Launched future inc in New Zealand
• Successful launch of Acuity in July 2014.
On both sides of the Tasman significant
effort has been focussed on building
the teams and organisation to deliver
on the benefits to all members of our
merger with the New Zealand Institute
of Chartered Accountants. When the
final enabling legislation is passed in
New Zealand we will be well advanced
in being the one entity - Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand.

I would like to thank all employees for
another successful year, and last, but
certainly not least, I am truly appreciative
of the guidance and support of the
President, the Chair and our Board.

Lee White FCA
Chief Executive Officer

It is also reflected in our commitment
to providing provisional members with
access to our 100,000 strong knowledge
network, together with representation
on our Young Professional Panels as a
means of engaging with their professional
organisation and networks.

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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Our transition

The Vision for members of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is to
be valued as the trusted leaders in business and finance. This is about positioning ‘CA’
as your profession’s pre-eminent designation. The Strategic Pillars are: Pre-eminence;
Relevance; and Reach. The strategic themes designed to reinforce the strategic
pillars are Business Leadership; Education and Member Centric, as shown below.

VISION

Pre-eminence

Relevance

BUSINESS LEADERSHIP
EDUCATION
MEMBER CENTRIC

8
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Reach

MEMBER VALUE

FUTURE STRENGTH

THE TRUSTED LEADERS IN BUSINESS AND FINANCE

The transition to Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand had
progressed significantly at year end.
Following the successful member vote
on 1 November 2013, the Accounting
Infrastructure Reform Bill was introduced
to the New Zealand Parliament on
2 December. It received its first reading
on 28 January and was referred to the
Commerce Select Committee, which
reported back on 19 May. The second
reading was held on 2 July and we
are now awaiting the third reading and
Governor General’s assent. In Australia,
the ICAA has been working with the
Government officials regarding the
process to amend the Royal Charter
and do not expect any delays once
the New Zealand legislation is enacted.
The strength of the member vote
and progress of the Accounting
Infrastructure Reform Bill created a
strong basis for both Boards to agree
to amalgamate ICAA and NZICA,
to the maximum extent possible,
pending enactment in New Zealand
and subsequent amendment
to the Royal Charter in Australia.
This has meant extending the existing
collaboration to all activities except
some aspects of governance and
NZICA’s regulatory activities.

Aside from the legislative process,
the focus since the vote has been
on the internal organisation design.
The draft structure to drive the new
strategy and deliver the promised
synergies was shared with staff in
November and the final version was
announced and implementation
commenced in April 2014.
Ensuring that we have the right talent in
place is vital to our success in delivering
on the promises made to members in the
Explanatory Memorandum. As we bed
down the new organisation our attention
is turning to the strategic initiatives
designed to deliver the pre-eminence,
relevance and reach that were integral
to the proposition to members. With the
calibre of the team now in place we are
confident of delivering on the aspirations
we shared with members.

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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Guiding our transition

Strategic Initiatives
Strategies
10

Member-centric

Education

Business leadership

For members to see Chartered
Accountants Australia and
New Zealand as the most valuable
resource they have

To be the leader in business
education in Australia and
New Zealand

To be recognised as the leading
Trans-Tasman voice for business
and a leading voice for the profession
internationally

• Create positive experiences for
members at every point of their
interaction
• Increase member involvement in
product and service development
• Provide tools and practical resources
to help members excel in business
and the profession
• Ensure programs and services
are relevant to our members and
stakeholders
• Establish offices in Singapore,
Kuala Lumpur and Hong Kong to
better engage our members in Asia
• Enhance technology and activities
that enable members to network,
exchange ideas and debate issues
affecting the profession or areas
of expertise
• Deliver a differentiated segmentation
strategy to ensure value to members
throughout their life cycle.

• Deliver a balance between strategic
and technically-based learning
that enables members to excel in
business
• Develop a fully resourced lifelong
learning program that provides
a broad spectrum of high quality
education to meet the professional
development needs of all members
• Continue investment in the
Chartered Accountants Program
to ensure it maintains its high quality
• Extend partnerships with leading
domestic and international learning
institutions and businesses
• Provide educational technology
solutions that enable flexibility,
relevance and connectivity in the
delivery of all education programs
• Explore specialist education and
recognition pathways
• Attract and retain the best talent and
develop Chartered Accountants who
are valued, trusted and respected.

• Differentiate Chartered Accountants
from other accountants and advisors
through effective marketing and
branding
• Formulate policy that influences
national economic and regulatory
agendas in domestic markets, bring
trans-Tasman economic relations
to life, and increase influence on
international professional and
technical standards
• Lead a conversation about the future
of the profession, education and the
profession, and how technology will
impact on the profession
• Engage and collaborate with other
bodies and organisations to deliver
better member value, support the
profession, and promote financial
integrity for society
• Uphold the importance of discipline,
ethics and
• Conduct of the profession.
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Our people

ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE

LEADERSHIP

As we have progressed through the
transition towards Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand we have
worked hard to retain talent and
institutional knowledge. A significant
number of our people were directly
mapped into roles and further internal
appointments have been made. We have
also looked to recruit new people with the
expertise and skills to deliver the very best
for our current and future members.

We are building a new contemporary
organisation and culture focussed on
bringing the new Chartered Accountants
ANZ brand to life. In the 2013/2014
financial year, a transitional management
team was appointed to oversee the
transition to Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand. This was
followed by the appointment of the
current Strategic Leadership Team
(SLT), comprising:

A lot of importance has been placed
on running a strong staff consultation
process and providing timely and
relevant information throughout that
process. The new structure has created
career opportunities for many and there
has been focus in recent months on
supporting our people through change
and transition. Support has been provided
through change workshops, employee
assistance programmes and career
transition services.

• Lee White FCA – Chief Executive
Officer
• Kirsten Patterson – New Zealand
Country Head
• Ken Picard FCA – Chief Financial
Officer
• Rob Ward AM FCA – Head of
Leadership & Advocacy
• Jeana Abbott – Head of Human
Resources
• Jason Dale CA – Head of Education
• Simon Grant FCA – Head of Members
• Leo Morta – Chief Information Officer.

DEVELOPING OUR CULTURE
The SLT is committed to leading the
creation of a culture that links strongly
to our brand values: Educate, Serve,
Connect and Innovate. We recognise the
importance of a culture that is committed
to the sustained leadership and growth
of our members, and our people.
We want to be seen as a leading
and respected employer in our region.
A culture programme has been launched
to build on our existing strengths and work
together to be a valued knowledge and
service network for our members.
Finding innovative and meaningful
ways for our people to communicate,
developing our employer brand, rolling

out new organisational network events,
bedding down a high performing
environment and putting in place an
approach that will sustain momentum
and growth are key priorities.

FUTURE FOCUS
As we look to the future we will continue
to focus on leadership and networking
opportunities for our people to connect
and learn. A new performance,
achievement and talent framework will
give our team clarity and direction as
we continue to deliver great service to
our members. This will be supported by
a culture of transparent and proactive
recognition, brought to life through the
stories of our team in action.

WORKPLACE GENDER
EQUALITY
The ICAA lodges its Workplace Gender
Equality report with the Workplace
Gender Equality Agency in accordance
with the Workplace Gender Equality Act
2012. Access to the reports are available
at wgea.gov.au

WORK, HEALTH AND SAFETY
The Audit and Risk Committee review
work health and safety performance,
and reports to the Board on emerging
issues and risk mitigation activities. The
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate of the
organisation is better than the industry
standard of 1.1. As the organisation moves
forward in merging with New Zealand
all safety policies and procedures are
being reviewed to deliver continuous
improvement in safety in the workplace.

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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Our Board

Tim Gullifer
FCA

Mel Ashton
FCA

Mike Blake
FCA

KATE DOWLING BCOM FCA

MEL ASHTON BCOM FCA

Executive Manager, Colonial First State,
Global Asset Management

Mel Ashton became a member of our
Institute in 1984 and advanced to
Fellowship in 1994. He was a member
of WA Regional Council from 2001 and
served as Vice Chairman in 2005 and
Chair in 2006. He became a Director in
January 2009. He is a member of the
Governance, Executive Remuneration
and Nominations Committees. For the
first 25 years of his professional career
he specialised in corporate recovery and
insolvency, and for the past nine years
he has been a professional non-executive
director. Mel currently serves on the
boards of a number of public and large
private companies.

MIKE BLAKE BCOM FCA
Auditor-General, Tasmanian Audit Office
Mike Blake became a member of our
Institute in 1991, advanced to Fellowship
in 1997 and was appointed a Director in
January 2011. He is Chair of the Audit
& Risk Committee, a member of the
Executive Remuneration Committee
and the Board observer on the
Regional Australia Advisory Committee.
Mike has over 37 years’ experience in the
audit and accounting professions in both
the public and private sectors and four
years’ management experience in the
health sector.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Michael Forde
FCA

PRESIDENT
Professional Non-Executive Director,
Mentoring Services for Business
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Kate Dowling
FCA

Kate Dowling became a member of
our Institute in 2000, was appointed a
Director in October 2012 and advanced
to Fellowship in 2013. She is the Board
observer on the Corporate Advisory
Committee and has more than 16 years’
experience in the financial services
industry in a chartered professional
services firm and in corporate
environments.

MICHAEL FORDE BA DIP ACC FCA
Corporate Finance Advisor
AquAsia Pty Ltd
Michael Forde became a member of
our Institute in 2011, was appointed a
Director in January 2012 and advanced
to Fellowship in 2013. He is a member
of the Chartered Accountants ANZ
Board. Michael has more than 21 years’
experience in investment banking,
professional services (audit and financial
risk consulting) and treasury in the UK,
Australia and New Zealand.

PROFESSOR PETER GREEN
PHD FCA
Queensland University of Technology
Business School
Peter Green became a member of our
Institute in 1997, advanced to Fellowship
in 2009 and was appointed a Director
in January 2009. He is the Board
observer on the Chartered Accountants
ANZ Education Board and the Higher
Education Advisory Committee. He is a
member of the Chartered Accountants
Program Review Sub-Committee.
Peter has over 26 years’ experience
in the tertiary education industry.

Peter Green
FCA

Brett Kaufmann
FCA

Benjamin Miels
FCA

BRETT KAUFMANN BA (ACC) FCA
Accounting and Governance Consultant
Brett Kaufmann became a member of our
Institute in 1995, advanced to Fellowship
in 2003 and was appointed a Director
in January 2011 until December 2013.
He was a member of the Audit & Risk
Committee and was the Board observer
on the Audit Advisory Committee.

BENJAMIN MIELS BB US (ACC)
BLAWS GRADDIP FCA
Managing Partner
Edwards Marshall Pty Ltd
Ben Miels became a member of our
Institute in 1994, advanced to Fellowship
in 2006 and was appointed a Director
in January 2013. He is a member of the
Governance Committee and is the Board
observer on the Public Practice Advisory
Committee. Ben has more than 21 years’
experience in the mid-tier public practice
sector of the profession.

VICE PRESIDENT
DARREN SCAMMELL BECON FCA
Partner, Financial Services Audit, KPMG
Darren Scammell became a member
of our Institute in 1989, advanced to
Fellowship in 2012 and was appointed a
Director in October 2012. He is a member
of the Audit & Risk Committee. Darren
has more than 28 years’ experience
as an auditor and accountant, specialising
in the financial services industry.

Darren Scammell
FCA

Mary Waldron
FCA

MARY WALDRON BACHELOR
OF ECONOMICS AND SOCIAL
STUDIES (HONS) FCA
Managing Partner, Reputation,
Regulation and Risk, PwC
Mary Waldron became a member of our
Institute in 1997, advanced to Fellowship
in 2009 and was appointed a Director
in February 2013. She has more than
21 years’ experience in providing audit
assurance and advisory services to some
of Australia’s largest listed national and
multinational public companies, and she
has worked closely with senior executives
and directors in the Australian market.

ANDREA WATERS BCOM FCA
Professional Non-Executive Director,
AJW Advisory Services

Andrea Waters
FCA

David Robjent
FCA

IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT
TIM GULLIFER BE CON DIPFP FCA
Senior Partner, Deloitte Private
Tim Gullifer became a member of our
Institute in 1982, advanced to Fellowship
in 1993 and was appointed a Director
in January 2010 until December 2013.
He was a member of the Executive
Remuneration and Nominations
Committees and the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Board.
Tim has 36 years’ experience advising
a broad range of clients in taxation and
business advisory services in a variety of
industries, notably entrepreneurial growth
companies and large wealthy families.

Andrea Waters became a member
of our Institute in 1987, advanced to
Fellowship in 2008 and was appointed
a Director in January 2009. She is
Chair of the Governance Committee,
a member of the Executive Remuneration
Committee, Chair of Counterparty Due
Diligence Committee and is a member
of the Audit Committee. For 16 years,
Andrea was an audit partner with KPMG
specialising in financial services, and is
now a professional non-executive director.

DAVID ROBJENT BEC FCA
CEO, Grey Advantage Consulting
Mr Robjent joined the Institute in 1985
and advanced to Fellowship in 2008.
Mr Robjent was appointed a Director
in January 2014. He is Chief Executive
Officer of Grey Advantage Consulting
having over 30 years professional
experience, including 22 years’ service
with Ernst and Young as Partner and
leader of its government advisory group
and that firm’s Federal Government
account director.
Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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Board and committee meetings
DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE FOR 1 JULY 2013 TO 30 JUNE 2014

THE INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS IN AUSTRALIA BOARD

14

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AUSTRALIA
AND NEW ZEALAND BOARD DESIGNATE

HELD

ATTENDED

HELD

ATTENDED

Tim Gullifer FCA

8

8

Mel Ashton FCA

11

11

Craig Farrow FCA

8

8

Andrea Waters FCA

11

11

Tim Gullifer FCA

5

5

Mike Blake FCA

11

9

Michael Forde FCA

9

9

Michael Forde FCA

11

11

Mel Ashton FCA (Observer)

9

8

Peter Green FCA
Darren Scammell FCA

11

11

Ben Miels FCA

6

5

11

11

Andrea Waters FCA

6

6

Brett Kaufmann FCA

7

7

Mike Blake FCA

6

4

Ben Miels FCA

11

9

Darren Scammell FCA (Observer)

3

3

Kate Dowling FCA

11

11

Mary Waldron FCA

2

2

Mary Waldron FCA

11

8

NZICA Representatives

David Robjent FCA

3

3

Liz Hickey FCA

4

4

Graham Crombie FCA

9

9

Murray Jack FCA

9

9

Catherine Drayton FCA

5

4

Doug McKay

6

6

Fred Hutchings FCA (Observer)

6

5

Neil Paviour-Smith FCA

6

5
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ICAA Representatives

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
HELD

ATTENDED

HELD

ATTENDED

Mike Blake FCA

4

4

Tim Gullifer FCA

3

3

Brett Kaufmann FCA

3

3

Mel Ashton FCA

3

3

Darren Scammell FCA

4

4

Mike Blake FCA

3

2

Andrea Waters FCA

1

1

Andrea Waters FCA

3

3

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
HELD

ATTENDED

Craig Farrow FCA

4

4

Mel Ashton FCA

4

4

Tim Gullifer FCA

4

4

Rachel Grimes FCA

2

2

Andrew Arkell FCA

3

3

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AUSTRALIA
AND NEW ZEALAND AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE
HELD

ATTENDED

Mike Blake FCA

1

1

Doug McKay

1

1

Andrea Waters FCA

1

1

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AUSTRALIA
AND NEW ZEALAND NOMINATIONS &
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
HELD

ATTENDED

Liz Hickey FCA

2

2

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Andrea Waters FCA

HELD

ATTENDED

2

2

Mel Ashton FCA

2

2

2

2

Mel Ashton FCA

2

2

Murray Jack FCA

Ben Miels FCA

2

2

Fred Hutchings FCA

2

2

Darren Scammell FCA

2

2

Tim Gullifer FCA

2

2
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Corporate governance

At 30 June 2014, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia (ICAA)
was in the process of amalgamating with
the New Zealand Institute of Chartered
Accountants (NZICA) and transitioning to
become Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand (trading name – ABN
50 084 642 571). We operate a bestpractice governance model overseen
by a Board of Directors and Strategic
Leadership Team. We are a memberbased organisation which was constituted
by Royal Charter in 1928.
We comply with Australian accounting
standards as a not-for-profit entity.
As an Australian body operating in a
co-regulatory environment, we have
chosen to comply with relevant ASX
Corporate Governance Principles with
2010 Amendments, elements of the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and other
relevant Commonwealth and State
legislation. Corporate governance and
administration is managed through
systems of control and accountability
outlined in our Institute’s Supplemental
Royal Charter, By-laws and Board
Governance Manual, including the Code
of Conduct. Further details about our
governance arrangements can be found
on our website at charteredaccountants.
com.au/governance.

ASX COMPLIANCE
Seven of the eight ASX corporate
governance principles have relevance to
the ICAA’s governance and operations.
The Board has determined that ‘Principle
5: Make timely and balanced disclosure’
has limited relevance because we have
no shareholders with investments at risk.
However, our members are informed of
financial and other matters relevant to
the membership as needs arise.

16
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While already compliant with ‘Principle 3:
Promote ethical and responsible decision
making’, we’ve taken steps to promote
this principle throughout our membership.
In relation to recommendation 3.2, a
diversity and EEO policy was developed
and approved by the Board, and we
have exceeded our agreed target of
30% female representation on the Board.
Currently, the Nominations Committee
considers diversity as one of its selection
criteria when recommending candidates
for appointment to the Board. As outlined
in its ASX compliance checklist, we comply
in full with the remaining six principles.
The checklist can be found on our website
at charteredaccountants.com.au/
governance.

BOARD GOVERNANCE
GUIDING PRINCIPLES
Throughout 2014, the Board approved
key guiding principles for the ICAA and
developed a governance framework,
which is being incorporated into the
architecture and strategic operations
of our new organisation.
The framework forms part of the
ICAA’s management of corporate
governance through systems of control
and accountability outlined in the ICAA’s
Supplemental Royal Charter, By-laws and
Board Governance Manual, including the
Code of Conduct.

The framework details the Board’s
oversight responsibilities and delegations
to the Board committees, as well as
the principle activities undertaken by
the Board and Board committees in
complying with the following Board
Guiding Principles:

ORGANISATION
1. We lead the profession
2. We operate a sustainable business
3. We uphold our standards for the
benefit of the profession and society.

MEMBERS
1. We lead, support and respect our
members
2. We uphold and promote the Chartered
Accountant designation
3. We provide and promote high-quality
lifelong learning.

STAFF
1. We live by our values
2. We strive for excellence in service
delivery
3. We treat each other with respect.
As part of the ICAA’s Annual Report
process, a compliance report has
been prepared against the ASX
Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendations, which demonstrates
that appropriate activities, communication
and assurance have been undertaken
to meet the Board’s obligations during
2013-2014. (see charteredaccountants.
com.au/governance).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is comprised entirely of
non-executive Directors. The Board and
committees operate in accordance with
charters, which are reviewed annually
to ensure alignment with governance
best practice and the organisation’s
strategic priorities.
The Board has at least seven scheduled
meetings each year, and has the facility
to meet without the CEO as required.
The Board is committed to holding at least
two of these meetings interstate, with the
balance held at head office in Sydney.
A register of disclosures for each Director
is tabled at every Board meeting (see
page 14 for Board meeting attendance).

The CEO and Strategic Leadership Team
(SLT) (charteredaccountants.com.au/
management) supply the Board with
information to enable it to make informed
decisions. The Board and management
maintain a three-year Strategic Plan,
which is reviewed and updated annually.
A detailed Organisational Business Plan is
established to set priorities, direction and
performance targets for the organisation.

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board structure includes both
member-elected and Board-elected
Directors. Directors are selected on the
basis of their skills, experience and other
relevant capabilities and attributes,
with due regard to diversity and the
mix of skills recommended by the Board
and to proper succession planning.

The Board comprises seven Directors
elected by members on regional registers.
Up to four additional Directors can be
Board-appointed. Directors serve a
maximum of two terms of three years
each. Each year the Board elects the
President and Deputy President.
The Board assesses annually the
independence of each Director. As soon
as they become aware of any actual
or perceived conflict, Directors must
disclose to the ICAA any matter that may
affect their independence. All Directors
are requested to disclose related party
transactions on an annual basis, and
a summary of these is disclosed in this
Annual Report (see Note 20, Related
Party Transactions, of the Financial
Statements).
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The Chair of the Board is an independent
Director, generally the President. All
Directors must comply with the Board
Code of Conduct and accompanying
guidelines (see charteredaccountants.
com.au/governance).
The Code covers issues such as the
requirement to act in good faith, duties
of due care and diligence, conflicts
of interest, issues of improper use of
power and information, independence,
confidentiality and the obligation
to uphold the law. The Governance
Committee undertakes an annual
performance review of the Board
and Board advisory committees.

ROLE OF CEO
The CEO is appointed by the Board and
is responsible for the management of our
organisation in accordance with approved
strategy, policies, and a performance
contract and delegated authority
framework. The CEO’s responsibilities
include advising the Board on strategic
direction, ensuring business activities align
with the strategic priorities,conducting the
ICAA’s affairs within the law, and keeping
the Board informed of all major business
proposals and developments through
regular reports. The CEO is invited to
Board and Board committee meetings
but is not a Director and is not entitled
to vote.

BOARD INDUCTION, EDUCATION
AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Each year the President and Deputy
President hold an orientation day for
new Directors, providing them with
required information such as the Board
Governance Manual (including the Code
of Conduct).
The Governance Committee considers
areas where Directors could benefit
from further professional development.
All Directors have access to the Board
Secretary, who is appointed by the
Board. As Head of Governance, the
Board Secretary is accountable
to the Board through the President
on governance matters.
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ADDING VALUE THROUGH
BOARD STRUCTURE
The Board and its committees provide
leadership and ensure we set and
achieve our strategic objectives and
operate effectively and efficiently.
Under our By-laws, the Board is given
power over:
• Maintaining and controlling the
ICAA’s affairs
• The appointment, removal and
remuneration of the CEO
• The promotion of improvements in laws
affecting the accounting profession
• The promulgation of regulations,
including regulations that prescribe
rulings
• Providing guidance on standards of
practice and professional conduct,
including technical standards.
The Board governs the ICAA by:
• Setting strategic direction
• Approving and monitoring delivery
of the Strategic Plan
• Liaising with stakeholders
• Monitoring legal and regulatory
compliance with statutory obligations
• Monitoring risk
• Monitoring organisational performance
• Monitoring the financial performance
and position.

BOARD COMMITTEES
There are five committees of the
Board: the Audit & Risk Committee,
the Governance Committee, the
Nominations Committee, the Executive
Remuneration Committee and
Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand Board Designate.

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Governance Committee assists
the Board with the oversight of matters
relating to the Royal Charter and By-laws
and general corporate governance. The
review of existing policy initiatives and
the development of new policy initiatives
and related issues, plus ethical guidelines
and professional conduct for the Board
and Board committees, are also the
responsibility of this Committee.

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
The Nominations Committee assists
the Board in identifying potential
candidates for appointment and making
recommendations on the removal
of committee members. While the
Committee does not formally make
appointments to the Board, it identifies
gaps in relation to diversity and skills, and
works with the Board to address these.

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE
The Audit & Risk Committee assists
the Board regarding financial reports,
the application of accounting policies,
internal control systems, compliance
and the operation of enterprise risk
management processes. The Committee
interacts with both internal and external
auditors and approves respective plans.
All members of the Committee have
financial qualifications.

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
The Executive Remuneration Committee
comprises the President, the Deputy
President and the chairs of the Audit
& Risk and Governance committees.
The Committee assists the Board on
matters relating to remuneration policy
and strategies for the CEO, SLT and
employees.

BOARD ADVISORY COMMITTEES
AND COUNCILS
There are seven regional councils that
assist the Board in raising and maintaining
the public profile of our Institute among
stakeholders in the regions. There are
six advisory committees: Corporate,
Public Practice, Audit, Regional Australia,
Education Board, and Higher Education.
There are five overseas member groups.
These committees report to the Board
and meet regularly. All committees
are governed by charters, which are
reviewed regularly to ensure roles
and responsibilities are consistent
with current thinking on governance
and our strategic priorities.

JOINT BOARDS
AND COMMITTEES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
BOARD DESIGNATE
The ICAA and NZICA established a
joint committee comprising Directors
from both organisations to oversee
the Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand project. Following
legal amalgamation this Committee
will formally become the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Board.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
EDUCATION BOARD
The ICAA and NZICA established a joint
committee to oversee the joint Chartered
Accountants Program.

JOINT ACCOUNTING BODIES
The objective of the Joint Accounting
Bodies (JAB) is to enable our Institute,
CPA Australia and the Institute of Public
Accountants to liaise and make joint
representations on areas of common
interest to the accounting profession.

INDEMNIFICATION AND
INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS
AND OFFICERS
Our By-laws generally provide for an
indemnity to each person who is, or has
been, a Director, Regional Councillor, CEO,
Regional General Manager or other officer
against all costs, losses and expenses
which they incur or become liable to by
reason of any contract, act or deed done
in discharge of their duties except in
circumstances of wilful default.
Our insurance policy serves to indemnify
Directors, Regional Councillors, committee
members and other officers against
liabilities for costs and expenses incurred
by them in defending legal proceedings
arising out of the performance of their
normal duties for the Institute.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
EY is our external auditor. The external
auditor’s performance is reviewed
annually. An analysis of fees paid to the
external auditor, including a breakdown of
any non-audit fees, is provided in Note 16,
Auditor’s Remuneration, of the Financial
Report. It is the policy of the external
auditor to provide an annual declaration
of independence to the Audit & Risk
Committee (see page 61).

The Audit & Risk Committee undertakes
a full review of the audit engagement
before deciding to reappoint the existing
audit firm or to seek tenders on the open
market. Our Institute is not subject to
mandatory rotation of audit partners but
applies this practice.

INTERNAL AUDITOR
Grant Thornton has been engaged as
our internal auditor since July 2008.
The internal auditor provides a report
on a quarterly basis to the Audit & Risk
Committee, in line with the approved
review program.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES
The non-audit services provided by the
auditor, EY, are set out in Note 16, Auditor’s
Remuneration, of the Financial Report.
The Audit & Risk Committee is satisfied
that the provision of non-audit services is
compatible with the general standard of
independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act. The nature and scope
of each type of non-audit service provided
means that auditor independence was
not compromised.

RISK MANAGEMENT
We are committed to building a strong
risk awareness culture and have a
framework for managing risk, ensuring
continuity of business through critical
situations and disaster recovery. Our risk
management framework aligns with the
international standard ISO 31000:2009
Risk Management and operates via five
main elements:
• Organisational commitment
• Planning
• Programs
• Communication and consultation
• Continuous improvement.
Responsibility for risk management is
shared across all levels of our Institute.
At Board level, the Audit & Risk
Committee has oversight of our Risk
Management Program and determines
the risk profile against an agreed risk
appetite. At management level, the
SLT identifies, assesses, monitors and
manages strategic and operational risk
and compliance across the organisation.
Areas where risk management is
undertaken include:
• Strategic
• Operational
• Project
• Contractual.

Key risks and risks associated with
implementing the Strategic Plan identified
in these areas are assessed by the SLT,
and mitigating actions are implemented
and monitored. The Audit & Risk
Committee and the Board receive risk
reports on the strategic and operational
risks of the ICAA, which in 2013-2014
included high-level risks associated with
the One New Institute project.

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY
Our Institute is committed to ethical
conduct and to providing an opportunity
for employees, members, candidates
and other stakeholders to raise any
concerns about unethical or illegal
conduct by employees, members,
candidates or Directors, or by
contractors or consultants to the
ICAA. Our whistleblower policy provides
protection procedures for persons
wishing to disclose reportable conduct
information internally and externally.

PRIVACY POLICY
ICAA takes privacy and data security
seriously. We are committed to
safeguarding the personal information
of individuals and fostering a corporate
culture that values privacy. We deal with
personal information in accordance with
the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth) (Privacy Act)
and the Australian Privacy Principles.
We also comply with the Spam Act 2003
(Cth), which imposes restrictions on
sending commercial electronic messages.
ICAA has a detailed Privacy Policy, which
is published on our website. Our Privacy
Policy was updated this year to reflect the
changes to the Privacy Act. Our Privacy
Policy informs those who interact with us
about the way we handle the information
they provide through our website or
through any other form of communication
with the ICAA, its agents or contractors.
ICAA also has a Privacy Officer who
responds to enquiries, complaints
and requests for access to personal
information as they arise.
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MANAGEMENT
REPRESENTATION LETTERS
The CEO and Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) submit annual management
representation letters to the Board and
the external auditor acknowledging
that information regarding the financial
statements in the Annual Report,
including our risk control framework,
is true and fair in accordance with
relevant standards.

COMMUNICATION
At the Annual General Meeting, the
Board presents to members the Annual
Report, signed by the President and
Deputy President, which includes our
audited financial statements for the
financial year. Members are emailed a
PDF version of the Annual Report. Hard
copies of the Annual Report are available
for members and key stakeholders upon
request. A summary is reported in our
member communications when the
Annual Report is available on our website
(charteredaccountants.com.au/AR2014).

MONITORING PERFORMANCE
BOARD PERFORMANCE
The Nominations Committee and
the Governance Committee review
the Board’s performance, including
making recommendations on the range
of skills, competencies and diversity
required among the Directors. As well
as conducting the annual performance
review of the Board, the Governance
Committee evaluates the performance
of individual Directors.

MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE
The Strategic Leadership Team (SLT)
undergoes annual performance planning
and review. The performance of each
executive is assessed by the CEO, CFO
and trans-Tasman Director Human
Resources. Executives are assessed
against achievement of their job
specifications and goals, contribution
towards specific business and strategic
objectives, and adherence to our
organisational values.

FAIR AND RESPONSIBLE
REMUNERATION
DIRECTORS
The By-laws state that the Board may
approve recommendations to remunerate
the President, Deputy President and nonexecutive Directors based on percentages
of the Australian Auditor-General’s salary
package (see Note 21(b), Compensation
of Key Management Personnel, of the
Financial Report). In the first instance
recommendations are made to the Board
by the Governance Committee. These
are put forward for member approval at
the Annual General Meeting. Directors
are considered to be independent insofar
as membership of our Institute does not
imply or constitute a relationship that
would lead to material interference with
their ability to act objectively and in the
best interests of our Institute.
Directors whose firms undertake work
for the ICAA do not participate in
negotiations or discussions around such
work at Institute Board meetings, and
abstain from any decisions that relate
to their organisation.
No Director or their organisation is a
material supplier to the ICAA, although
their organisations may be customers in
certain circumstances. In forming this view,
the Board has presumed a relationship is
immaterial when it generates less than 5%
of group revenue, and presumed material
when it generates more than 10% of
group revenue during a 12-month period
in the absence of evidence or convincing
argument to the contrary. In considering
such evidence or argument, the Board
takes into account the strategic value
and other material but non-quantitative
aspect of the relationship in question.

No Director of the ICAA has, since the
end of the previous financial year, received
or become entitled to receive a benefit
(other than a benefit included in the total
amount of emoluments disclosed in Note
21, director and executive disclosures, in
the Notes to the Financial Statements) by
reason of a contract made by the ICAA
with a director or with a firm of which the
director is a member, or with any entity
in which the director has a substantial
financial interest except as set out in
Note 20, related party transactions,
in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
Institute Directors may seek external
professional advice at the expense of the
ICAA on matters relating to their role as
directors of Institute. However, they must
first request approval from the President
or Deputy President; this must not
unreasonably be withheld. If permission
is withheld, the matter may be referred
to the whole Board.
In 2013/14 the Nominations and
Governance Committee conducted
a review of Directors’ remuneration.
A recommendation on Directors’
remuneration was approved by the
members at the AGM in November 2013.

MANAGEMENT
The Board’s Executive Remuneration
Committee monitors and approves
the terms and conditions of employment
for employees and employee
remuneration. The Committee considers
the remuneration and retention of the
CEO and SLT, agrees the remuneration
strategy and structure, and approves
the annual remuneration budget.
The Executive Remuneration Committee
has approved the implementation of a
performance-based incentive plan for
the SLT. The Committee also approves
any other performance-based bonus
payments for Institute employees.
The CEO is eligible for a bonus payment
subject to the Board evaluating and
approving their performance against
a range of indicators, including the overall
performance of our Institute and the
achievement of key performance targets
that reflect the breadth of our strategic
and priority activities see Note 21(b),
Compensation of Key Management
Personnel, of the Financial Report).

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE
The Directors received a declaration from
the auditor of our Institute, (on page 61).
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Advisory Committees and Boards
NOTE: COMMITTEE TERMS BASED ON CALENDAR YEAR.
ANNUAL REPORT BASED ON FINANCIAL YEAR.

COMMITTEES AND
COUNCILS FOR 2014
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
BOARD DESIGNATE

(ICAA representatives)
Craig Farrow FCA (Chair retired)
Mel Ashton FCA
Darren Scammell FCA (observer)
Michael Forde FCA
Tim Gullifer FCA (retired)
Andrea Waters FCA
Michael Blake FCA

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Andrea Waters FCA (Chair)

CORPORATE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE

Mel Ashton FCA

Charles McNeill FCA (Chair)

Tim Gullifer FCA (retired)

Kate Dowling FCA (Board representative)

Ben Miels FCA

Nicole Gamerov CA

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
Tim Gullifer FCA (Chair 2013)
Mel Ashton FCA
Mike Blake FCA
Craig Farrow FCA (retired)
Andrea Waters FCA

Ben Miels FCA

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Mary Waldron FCA

Craig Farrow FCA (Chair)

(NZICA representatives)
Liz Hickey FCA (observer)
Graham Crombie FCA
Murray Jack FCA (Chair 2014)

Mel Ashton FCA
Rachel Grimes FCA (retired)
Tim Gullifer FCA
Andrew Arkell FCA

Amanda Lawson FCA
Beth Michetti CA
David Nelan CA
Lincoln Tong CA
Nigel Underwood FCA
John van Ruth FCA

PUBLIC PRACTICE
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
John Palermo FCA (Chair 2013) (retired)
David Armstrong FCA (Chair 2014)
Mel Ashton FCA (retired)
Nick Burne FCA
Michael Burnett FCA (retired)
Joanne Doyle FCA

DUE DILIGENCE COMMITTEE

Simon Graetz FCA

Andrea Waters FCA

Brad Hellen FCA (Chair 2012) (retired)

Fred Hutchings FCA (observer)

Michael Forde FCA

Timothy Holden FCA

Neil Paviour-Smith FCA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

Catherine Drayton FCA (retired)
Doug McKay

JOINT ACCOUNTING BODIES
COMMITTEE

(Institute Members)
Craig Farrow FCA (Joint Chair) (retired)
Tim Gulliver (Joint Chair 2014)

Mike Blake FCA (Chair)
Doug McKay
Andrea Waters FCA

Brett Kaufmann FCA (retired)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
NOMINATIONS & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Darren Scammell FCA

Liz Hickey FCA (Chair)		

Andrea Waters FCA

Mel Ashton FCA		

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
Michael Blake FCA (Chair)

Gail Kinsella FCA (retired)
Alan Lockwood FCA (retired)
Ben Miels FCA (Board representative)
Natalie Miller CA (retired)
Graeme Obst FCA (retired)
Susan Rix FCA
David Ross CA

Murray Jack FCA		
Fred Hutchings FCA 		
Darren Scammell FCA 		
Tim Gullifer FCA 		
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AUDIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Julian Bishop CA (Chair)
Peter Catterson FCA
Lucio Di Giallonardo FCA
Carla Jago CA
Brett Kaufmann FCA (Board
representative) (retired)
Sarah Merridew FCA
Professor Nonna Martinov-Bennie FCA

Professor Stewart Leech FCA (Chair)
(retired Dec 2013)

Owen Gibson CA
Professor Peter Green FCA (Observer)
Dr Julie Harrison CA
Professor Fawzi Laswad FCA (Chair 2014)

(retired)

Professor Anne Lillis CA

Peter Shields CA

Gordon Mackenzie FCA

Professor Glennda Scully FCA

John Murray FCA

Brendan Worrall FCA

Frank Newman FCA

Ben Willington CA

Jenny Parker FCA

Kristen Wydell FCA

Associate Professor Julie Walker CA

REGIONAL AUSTRALIA
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Bill Sheehan FCA (Chair) (retired)
Jonathan Forrest FCA (Deputy Chair)
(appointed Chair 2014)

Cliff Anderson FCA (retired)
Mike Blake (Board representative)
Peter Catterson FCA
Bruce Debenham CA
Robert Groom CA
Damian Mulherin FCA
Michael Ryan FCA (retired)
Maria Cavallo CA
Lucy Roffey FCA

HIGHER EDUCATION
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Professor Roger Burritt CA (Chair)
Dr Sherrena Buckby CA
Associate Professor Elizabeth Carson
Professor Jayne Godfrey FCA
Professor Peter Green FCA

Professor Graeme Wines CA
Stephen Walker CA

REGIONAL COUNCILS
NEW SOUTH WALES COUNCIL
2014
Jane Stanton FCA (Chair) (retired 2013)
John Robinson FCA (Vice Chair) (retired 2013)
Cameron Johnstone FCA (Chair 2014)
Heather Watson FCA (Vice Chair 2014)
Paul Gidley FCA
Philomena Leung CA
Jane Meade FCA
Wendy Patterson FCA
Karen Scott-Davie FCA
Ross Tilly FCA
Alison MacDonald
Wayne Bartlett CA (retired 2013)
Andrew Archer FCA (retired 2013)
Georgina Gaussen FCA (retired 2013)

AUSTRALIAN CAPITAL
TERRITORY COUNCIL 2014
Sue Ellen Bickford CA (retired 2013)
David Robjent FCA (retired 2013)
Steven McDonnell FCA (Chair)
Karen Toole CA
Michael Talevich CA
Lorraine Watt FCA
Cameron Lynch CA
Amy Fox CA
Adrian King CA
Andrew Sykes CA
Prof. Kerry Jacobs FCA
Stephen Holmes FCA (retired 2013)

TASMANIA COUNCIL 2014
Hugh McKenzie FCA (Chair)
Ben Coull FCA (Vice Chair)
Paul Breen FCA

(Board representative)

Leah Eyre CA

Professor Phillip Hancock FCA

Lyndal Kimpton CA

Doctor Sue Hrasky
Professor Kerry Jacobs FCA
Professor Philomena Leung CA
Professor Robyn Moroney CA
Professor Derek Parkin
Associate Professor Brad Potter
Professor Christine Ryan CA
Doctor Ciorstan Smark
Kevin Stevenson FCA
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Danny McCarthy FCA
Anita Robertson CA
David Nelan CA
Brett Spinks FCA (retired 2013)
Sarah Merridew FCA (retired 2013)
Rod Whitehead FCA (retired 2013)

VICTORIA COUNCIL 2014
Matthew Pringle FCA (Chair 2013)

OVERSEAS MEMBER
GROUP CHAIRS

David Thompson FCA (Chair 2014)

SINGAPORE

Julia Langdon FCA (Vice Chair)

Don Northey FCA (from April 2013)

Associate Professor Paul Coram FCA
Bill Edge FCA
Darryl Jess FCA
Charles McNeill FCA
Paul Meissner CA
Taryn Rulton CA

MALAYSIA
Heng Ji-Keng FCA (from December 2012)

HONG KONG
Michael Pang FCA

UNITED KINGDOM

Michael Cain FCA (retired)

Paul Cronshaw FCA

Gary Dickson FCA (retired)

OVERSEAS JOINT COMMITTEE
REPRESENTATIVES

SOUTH AUSTRALIA / NORTHERN
TERRITORY COUNCIL 2014
Thea Eszenyi FCA
Mark Coleman FCA (Chair)
John Medlin CA
John van Ruth FCA
Matthew Kennon FCA
Matthew King CA
Nigel Stevenson FCA
Rachel Rees FCA
Stephen J Noble FCA (Vice Chair)
Mark Phelps FCA (retired 2013)
Lisa Powell FCA (retired 2013)

QUEENSLAND COUNCIL 2014
Adam Dierselhuis CA (Chair)
Kate Swindon FCA (Vice Chair)
Charles Kerr FCA
Troy Popham FCA
Peter O’Regan FCA
Kaylene Gaffney FCA
Prof. Chris Ryan CA
Richard Wanstall CA
Glenn Russell CA

WESTERN AUSTRALIA
COUNCIL 2014
John Palermo FCA (Chair) (retired 2013)
David Gilchrist FCA (Chair 2014)
Peter Rupp FCA (Vice Chair)
Con Abbott FCA
Matthew Allen FCA
Amanda Cox FCA
Douglas Craig FCA
Tinashe Kamangira CA
Ron Louis FCA
Glennda Scully FCA
Matthew Davidson CA (retired 2013)
Peter Hansen FCA (retired 2013)

Rachel Grimes FCA
International Federation of
Accountants Board
Low Weng Keong FCA
Confederation of Asian and Pacific
Accountants
Tim Youngberry FCA
International Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board
Prof. Peter Wolnizer FCA
International Accounting Education
Standards Board
Jim Dickson FCA
Compliance Advisory Panel
John Cahill FCA
Professional Accountants in Business
Committee
Stuart Black FCA
Small and Medium Practices
Anne Loveridge FCA
IFAC Nominating Committee
Merran Kelsall FCA
International Audit and Assurance
Standards Board
Richard Mifsud FCA
International Audit and Assurance
Standards Board
Margaret Parker FCA (retired)
IFAC Nominating Committee
Geoff Applebee FCA (retired)
Confederation of Asian and Pacific
Accountants
Alice McCleary FCA (retired)
International Ethics Standards Board
Prof. Kim Langfield-Smith FCA (retired)
International Accounting Education
Standards Board
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Financial commentary
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

CASH FLOW AND LIQUIDITY

In 2013 - 2014, the principal activities
of the Institute were the provision of
education and training to members,
provisional members and the broader
business community, provision of
member services and pre-merger
and collaboration initiatives with the
New Zealand Institute of Chartered
Accountants.

Capital expenditure totalled $1.2m
which was predominantly hardware and
software for the IT transition program and
the refurbishment of level 6, 33 Erskine
Street, Sydney.

At balance date, the Institute had cash
of $46.3m. Receipts from membership
subscriptions in June totalled $27.9m.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The Institute generated a surplus of
$0.5m for the year (2013: $2.3m deficit).
Total revenue and other income rose
by 1.0% to $97.1m, while expenditure
decreased by 1.8% to $96.6m.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
The increase in revenue of $1.5 million
over the 2013 result flowed from:
• An increase in membership revenue
of $2.5 million due to a 1.2% increase in
membership subscriptions combined
with increased member numbers
of 3.9%
• Offset by a decrease in education
revenue of $0.9 million, mainly in
training & development and the
Chartered Accountants Program.
The decrease in expenditure of $1.8
million over the 2013 result was due to:
• IT expenses decreased by 6.6% ($0.7m),
primarily due to lower education
project related expenses and
depreciation expenses
• Other expenses decreased by 30.9%
(or $4.1m), primarily as a result of lower
CA development expenses
• Delivery of improved online services
and events contributed to savings in
service expenses of 7.7% (or $1.7m)
• Offset by an increase in Administration
expenses of 9.5% (or $4.5 million)
including $3.0m project merger costs
and due to higher payroll expenses.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
Net assets increased by $9.5m, or 17%,
as a result of the revaluation of land and
buildings, and the surplus generated in
the year to 30 June 2014.

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents increased
from $44.8m to $46.3m, placing the
Institute in a strong financial position to
fund the operations and investments
planned in the next financial year.
Trade receivables at balance date
remain stable with debtors expected to
be recovered in the normal course of
business, with adequate provision for
any debts considered doubtful.
Property, plant and equipment had a net
increase of $6.6m primarily due to the
revaluation of the Institute’s head office
building in Sydney.

LIABILITIES
Fees in advance includes $27.9m relating
to payments received from members as
at 30 June 2014, for services that will
be delivered in the financial year ending
30 June 2015. The amounts received are
not expected to be refunded and will be
recognised as revenue in the financial
year ending 30 June 2015.
Provisions increased by $3.1m mainly due
to higher employee entitlement provisions
at balance date, including a redundancy
provision of $3m.

MEMBERS’ FUNDS
The financial objective of the Institute is
to ensure that it has sufficient reserves
to provide the necessary services to its
members and to meet its obligations
as set out in the Institute’s strategic
and business plans. The Institute has
set a target ratio of members’ funds to
operating expenditure of 45% to 55%.
This ratio is currently being met.
Consistent with its Charter, the Institute
does not distribute reserves to its
members. In the event of the Institute
being wound-up or dissolved, the amount
that remains after such dissolution and
the satisfaction of all debts and liabilities
shall be transferred to another entity
which has similar objects and which has
rules prohibiting the distribution of assets
and income to its members.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Total revenue and other income
Total expenses
Surplus/(deficit)

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

97,129

96,097

91,639

91,408

86,112

(96,631)

(98,405)

(88,801)

(86,349)

(79,392)

(2,308)

2,838

5,059

6,720

498

Current assets

52,737

51,910

46,709

37,659

32,117

Non-current assets

64,750

58,424

61,834

61,184

59,945

(50,342)

(53,021)

(48,443)

(43,541)

(42,414)

(2,656)

(2,332)

(1,621)

(1,511)

(1,255)

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total net assets

64,489

54,981

58,479

53,791

48,393

16,397

7,387

8,577

6,727

6,388

Accumulated surpluses

48,092

47,594

49,902

47,064

42,005

Total members’ funds

64,489

54,981

58,479

53,791

48,393

Reserves

During the 2014 financial year further significant progress was made on the One New Institute project
in readiness for a planned completion this year. Despite incurring additional project costs of $3.0m and
providing an additional $3.0m for staff redundancies, the Institute has reported a modest surplus of
$498,000 largely resulting from savings achieved as we moved to the One New Institute model.
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Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NOTES

Revenue
Other income
Total revenue and other income

4(a)

Service expenses
Occupancy expenses
Administration expenses
Information technology expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses

4(b)

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

94,595

93,077

2,534

3,020

97,129

96,097

(20,156)

(21,830)

(6,115)

(5,940)

(51,920)

(47,433)

(9,266)

(9,917)

(9,174)

(13,285)

(96,631)

(98,405)

Surplus/(deficit) before tax
Income tax expense

498

5

–

Surplus/(deficit) after tax

(2,308)
–

498

(2,308)

9,010

(1,190)

Total other comprehensive income/(loss)

9,010

(1,190)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax

9,508

(3,498)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to surplus or deficit

Fair value increment/(decrement) of freehold property

8

The above Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia

Statement of Financial Position
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

NOTES

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

6

46,262

44,838

Trade and other receivables

7

6,475

7,072

52,737

51,910

Total current assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables

7

–

–

Property, plant and equipment

8

63,388

56,740

Intangible assets

9

1,362

1,684

Total non-current assets

64,750

58,424

Total assets

117,487

110,334

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Fees in advance

10

36,064

44,280

Trade and other payables

11

7,434

5,214

Provisions

12

6,844

3,527

50,342

53,021

Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

11

1,610

1,110

Provisions

12

1,046

1,222

2,656

2,332

Total liabilities

52,998

55,353

Net assets

64,489

54,981

Total non-current liabilities

MEMBERS’ FUNDS

Reserves

13

16,397

7,387

Accumulated surpluses

13

48,092

47,594

64,489

54,981

Total members’ funds
The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes..
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Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

RESERVES
$’000

At 1 July 2013

TOTAL
$’000

7,387

47,594

54,981

Surplus after tax for the year

–

498

498

Other comprehensive income

9,010

–

9,010

Total comprehensive income

9,010

498

9,508

16,397

48,092

64,489

8,577

49,902

58,479

At 30 June 2014

At 1 July 2012
Deficit after tax for the year

-

(2,308)

(2,308)

Other comprehensive loss

(1,190)

Total comprehensive loss

(1,190)

(2,308)

(3,498)

At 30 June 2013

7,387

47,594

54,981

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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-

(1,190)

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia

Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Receipts from members’ subscriptions

47,652

56,703

Receipts from the Institute’s activities

45,726

49,330

Payments to suppliers and employees

(92,677)

(99,128)

NOTES

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net refund/(payment) for GST
Net cash flows from operating activities

525

6

(697)

1,226

6,208

1

32

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangibles
Interest received

(679)

(611)

(1,078)

1,351

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

198

Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

(543)

6

1,589
(136)

-

-

1,424

6,072

44,838

38,766

46,262

44,838

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The financial statements of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia
(Institute) for the year ended 30 June
2014 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of
Directors on 23 October 2014.
The Institute is an Australian registered
body corporate that is governed by
its Supplemental Royal Charter and is
domiciled in Australia. Members of the
Institute are not liable for the debts
and liabilities of the Institute.
The registered office of the Institute is:
33 Erskine Street
Sydney NSW 2000
The Institute is a not for profit entity and
its principal activities during the year were:
• Delivery of pre and post admission
education and services
• Setting and maintaining of high
standards as they apply to members
to enhance their standing with the
public and the business community
• Continuing development of government
relations and advocacy programs in
pursuit of legislative and regulatory
objectives
• Continuing development of a program
to enhance the market and personal
value of the Chartered Accountant
designation
• Collaboration and pre-merger
initiatives with the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants
(NZICA).
The Accounting Infrastructure Reform
Bill 2014 is to be considered by the New
Zealand Parliament. If the New Zealand
Bill is passed the merger with NZICA may
be finalised. This financial report has been
prepared on the basis of the Institute as a
standalone entity, and not on the basis of
a merged entity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATION NOT YET ADOPTED

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION

Certain Australian Accounting Standards
and AASB interpretations have recently
been issued or amended but were not
yet effective and have not been adopted
by the Institute for the annual reporting
period ended 30 June 2014. The standards
relevant to the Institute are the following:
• AASB 9 Financial Instruments includes
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets.
The requirements improve and simplify
the approach for classification and
measurement for financial assets
compared with the requirements
of AASB 139. AASB 9 will become
mandatory for the Institute’s 30 June
2016 financial statements, and is not
expected to have a material impact on
the financial statements

This general purpose Financial Report
has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (AIFRS)
and other authoritative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB).
This Financial Report has been prepared
on the basis of historical cost, except
for freehold property, which has been
measured at fair value (refer Note 2(e)).
The Financial Report is presented in
Australian dollars (AUD) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($’000) unless otherwise stated.

(B) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND INTERPRETATIONS

The accounting policies adopted are
consistent with those of the previous
financial year except as follows:
The Institute has adopted the following
new and amended Australian Accounting
Standards and AASB Interpretations as
of 1 July 2013:
• AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
establishes a single source of guidance
for determining fair value of assets and
liabilities. AASB 13 does not change
when an entity is required to use fair
value, but rather provides guidance on
how to determine fair value and some
additional disclosures. Application
of AASB 13 has not impacted the
fair value measurement of freehold
property and additional disclosures are
provided in note 2(e) and note 8

• AASB 119 Employee Benefits (2011)
changed the definition of short term
employee benefits and other long term
benefits and clarified the distinction
between the two. The distinction
between the short term and other
long term benefits is now based on
whether the benefits are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after
the reporting date. The Institute has
applied AASB 119 retrospectively.

• AASB 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements establishes a new control
model that applies to all entities. The
new control model broadens the
situation where an entity is considered
to be controlled by another entity and
includes new guidance on how to apply
the model. As the Institute is classified
a not-for-profit entity, AASB 10 will
become mandatory for the Institute’s
30 June 2015 financial statements,
and is not expected to have a material
impact on the financial statements
• AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities introduces new
disclosures about the judgements
made by management to determine
whether control exists, and summarises
information about subsidiaries. As the
Institute is classified a not-for-profit
entity, AASB 12 will become mandatory
for the Institute’s 30 June 2015
financial statements, and is not
expected to have a material impact
on the financial statements.
There are no new Interpretations which
are expected to have any impact on the
Institute’s financial statements.

(C) CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents in the
Statement of Financial Position, which
comprise cash at bank and in hand and
short-term deposits, are stated at their
nominal amount.
For the purposes of the Statement of
Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above and include deposits at
call which are readily convertible to cash
in hand and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

(D) TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are recognised and
carried at original invoice amount less an
allowance for impairment. Collectability
of trade receivables is reviewed on an
ongoing basis. An impairment provision
is recognised when there is objective
evidence that the Institute will not be able
to collect the receivable. Individual debts
that are known to be uncollectible are
written off when identified.

(E) PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
Freehold property is measured at fair
value, less accumulated depreciation
on buildings and building plant, less any
impairment losses recognised after the
date of revaluation.
The fair value of freehold property is
a Directors’ valuation and has taken
into account an independent valuation
undertaken as at 30 June 2014 based
upon a comparable market approach
and depreciated replacement cost.
The valuation was carried out by McGees
Property (NSW) Pty Ltd and the entire
freehold property amount is categorised
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
Refer to note 8 for further information.

All plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation or amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, other than land, is calculated
on a straight-line basis at rates which
take account of the remaining useful life
of the relevant assets and their estimated
residual values. The cost of fixtures
and fittings on leasehold premises is
amortised over their estimated useful
lives or the remainder of the lease period,
dependent on whichever period is shorter.
Major depreciation periods are:
Freehold property:
Building

50 years

Building plant

25 years

Furniture

10 years

Office equipment

5 years

Computer equipment

3 years

Fixtures and fittings on
freehold premises

10 years

Fixtures and fittings on
leasehold premises

Lease term

Motor vehicles

3 years

The assets’ residual values, useful lives,
depreciation and amortisation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each financial year end. There were
no changes to the residual values, useful
lives or depreciation and amortisation
methods in the current or previous
financial year.

(I) IMPAIRMENT

The carrying values of plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not
be recoverable. Impairment losses
are recognised as expenditure in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income. Freehold
property is measured at revalued
amounts, and therefore impairment
losses on freehold property are treated
as a revaluation decrement.
(II) REVALUATIONS

Following initial recognition at cost,
freehold property is carried at a revalued
amount, which is the fair value at the
date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation on buildings
and any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are
carried out annually.
Any revaluation increment is credited to
the property revaluation reserve included
in the members’ funds section of the
Statement of Financial Position, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrement for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is recognised in profit or loss.
Any revaluation decrement is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
offsets a previous revaluation increment
for the same asset, in which case the
decrement is debited directly to the
property revaluation reserve to the
extent of the credit balance existing in
the revaluation reserve for that asset.
(III) DERECOGNITION AND DISPOSAL

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when
no further future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive income
in the year the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
(F) INTANGIBLES

(G) FEES IN ADVANCE

(II) LONG SERVICE LEAVE

Intangible assets are initially measured
at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Fees in advance are carried at original
invoice amount in respect of goods and
services to be provided subsequent to
balance date. Fees in advance includes
membership fees, Chartered Accountants
Program enrolment fees, and Training
& Development course fees.

The liability for long service leave is
recognised in the provision for employee
benefits and measured as the present
value of expected future payments to
be made in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date
using the projected unit credit method.
Consideration is given to expected
future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures, and periods
of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields
at the reporting date on Australian
Government Bonds with terms to maturity
and currencies that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future
cash outflows.

The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over their useful life and
assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at least at each financial year
end. Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, which is a change in
accounting estimate. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in profit or loss in the
expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.
Intangibles are amortised as follows:
Computer software

3 years

Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, and are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
The Institute has no intangible assets
assessed having an indefinite life.

The Fees in advance balance relates to
payments received from members and
provisional members as at 30 June 2014,
for services that will be delivered in the
financial year ending 30 June 2015.
The amounts received are not expected
to be refunded and will be recognised
as revenue in the financial year ending
30 June 2015.

(H) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables are carried at amortised
cost. They represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Institute
prior to the end of the financial year
that are unpaid and arise when the
Institute becomes obliged to make future
payments in respect of the purchase of
these goods and services. Trade payables
are non-interest bearing and are normally
settled on a 30-day term.

(I) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(I) WAGES, SALARIES AND
ANNUAL LEAVE

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, and annual leave
expected to be settled within 12 months
of the reporting date, are recognised in
other payables in respect of employees’
services up to the reporting date. They
are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
Any annual leave expected to be settled
beyond 12 months of the reporting date
is measured at the present value of
expected future payments.

(III) TERMINATION BENEFITS

Liabilities for termination benefits
are recognised in the provision for
employee benefits when the Institute is
demonstrably committed to terminate
the employee or where an offer is made in
order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Employee termination benefits are
measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are to be settled
within 12 months. Where the termination
benefits are expected to be due more
than 12 months after reporting date, the
amounts are discounted using market
yields on Australian Government Bonds
with terms to maturity and currencies
that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.
(IV) SUPERANNUATION

Liabilities for superannuation are
recognised in the provision for employee
benefits. The Institute provides
superannuation in accordance with the
relevant government legislation.
(V) WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

The Institute maintains Workers’
compensation cover in accordance
with the relevant State and Territory
government legislation.
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(J) REVENUE AND EXPENSE
RECOGNITION
Revenues and expenses are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that their
respective economic benefits will flow to,
or be lost, or be consumed by the Institute
and that the revenues and expenses
can be reliably measured. The following
specific recognition criteria must also
be met before revenues or expenses
are recognised.
(I) MEMBER FEES

The Institute’s membership subscription
year is 1 July to 30 June. Fees are
payable annually in advance. Only
those member fee receipts that are
attributable to the current financial
year are recognised as revenue.
Fee receipts relating to periods beyond
the current financial year are shown,
excluding any applicable taxes, in the
Statement of Financial Position as
Fees in advance, under the heading
of current liabilities.
(II) OTHER REVENUE-GENERATING
ACTIVITIES

The Institute undertakes certain activities
which are accounted for on a workin-progress basis including Chartered
Accountants Program modules, Training
& Development courses, quality reviews,
charter magazines, conferences, and
student activities. The Institute’s policy
of accrual accounting with respect to the
recognition of revenues and expenses
on such activities is as follows:
• For activities which are completed
on or before balance date, any surplus
or deficit is incorporated into the
year’s results
• For activities which take place wholly
after the end of the financial year, any
revenue received and expense incurred
on such activities prior to balance date
is deferred and carried forward in the
Statement of Financial Position within
fees in advance and prepayments
respectively
• For activities to be delivered after
balance date, a proportion of the final
projected net surplus is recognised in
the financial year on the percentage
of completion basis.

Revenue in regard to certain activities is
deferred in cases where it is anticipated
that refunds will be made in regard
to discontinuation by attendees. The
deferred amount is carried forward in
the Statement of Financial Position within
fees in advance.
For activities to be completed after
balance date, the methods adopted to
determine the percentage of completion
basis are as follows:
• For Chartered Accountants Program
modules, the percentage of completion
is apportioned according to the time
span between the commencement
of the module and the completion of
the examination
• For other courses and activities that
are delivered in a series of events,
the percentage of completion is
apportioned according to the number
of events delivered at balance date
compared to the total number of
events in the series.
Rental income from leased premises is
recognised on an emerging basis.
(III) SALE OF GOODS

The Institute recognises revenue from the
sale of goods when physical control of the
goods passes to the purchaser pursuant
to an enforceable sales contract and the
costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured
reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership
are considered passed to the buyer
at the time of delivery of the goods to
the customer.
(IV) MEMBER BENEFITS REVENUE

The Institute receives revenue in the form
of either a fixed monthly fee or in the
form of trailing or upfront commissions
on member generated activity through
its member offers program. Income is
accounted on an accrual basis.

(V) INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income on bank bills and deposits
is recognised on an accrual basis (using
the effective interest method, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the investment) where the Institute
attains control of a right to receive
consideration for an investment.
There was no interest on borrowings
incurred during the year.
(VI) MEMBER GROUPS

The Institute grants funds to certain
interstate and overseas member groups.
These funds are paid to support and
supplement membership activities
controlled by members in those locations
and are expensed by the Institute at the
time of the payment to the groups.

(K) INCOME TAX AND OTHER
TAXES
(I) INCOME TAX

The Institute prepares its income tax returns
by reference to the application of the
principle of mutuality to the revenue and
expenses of the Institute. The principle of
mutuality is a common law principle arising
from the premise that individuals cannot
profit from themselves. Accordingly, receipts
from members are deemed to be mutual
income and not subject to income tax,
and expenses in connection with mutual
activities are therefore not deductible for
taxation purposes. All other receipts and
payments are classified in accordance
with taxation legislation.
The Institute is liable for other taxes
including fringe benefits tax.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax losses and unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
The exception is when the deferred
tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor the taxable profit
or loss.
The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at each balance date
and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset
to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance date and
are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the year when the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively
enacted at balance date.
Where assets are revalued, no provision
for potential capital gains tax has
been made because of the long-term
nature of the asset and the existence of
accumulated tax losses.
(II) GOODS AND SERVICES TAX (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are
recognised net of the amount of GST
except:
• Where the GST incurred on a purchase
of goods or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which
case the GST is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable
• Receivables and payables, which
are stated with the amount of
GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority
is included as part of receivables
or payables in the Statement of
Financial Position.
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In respect of all fees in advance that are
subject to GST, a liability for GST payable
is raised except for fees in advance that
have a settlement date in respect of the
GST liability that occurs prior to balance
date at which stage the liability will have
already been settled.

(O) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
OTHER THAN GOODWILL

Cash flows are included in the Statement
of Cash Flows on a gross basis, and the
GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities, which
is recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority, is classified as part of
operating cash flows.

For an asset that does not generate
largely independent cash inflow, the
recoverable amount is determined for
the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Commitments and contingencies
Commitments and contingencies are
disclosed net of the amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority.

(L) OPERATING LEASES

The carrying values of the Institute’s
assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets or cashgenerating units are written down to their
recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of the asset is
the greater of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use.

Operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Lease incentives are recognised in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income as an integral
part of the total lease expense.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but only to the
extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years.

(M)PROVISIONS

An impairment loss and/or reversal is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
immediately.

Provisions are recognised when there is a
present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as
a borrowing cost. The rate used is with
reference to the applicable Australian
Government Bond rate.

(N) BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense when incurred. There were no
borrowing costs in 2014.

(P) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS
In applying the Institute’s accounting
policies, management continually
evaluates judgments, estimates and
assumptions based on experience and
other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have an impact
on the Institute.
All judgments, estimates and assumptions
made are believed to be reasonable
based on the most current set of
circumstances available to management.
Actual results may differ under different
conditions from the judgments, estimates
and assumptions. Significant judgments,
estimates and assumptions made by
management in the preparation of these
financial statements are outlined below.

(I) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS

Non-recovery of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are not recognised
for deductible temporary differences
as management considers that it is not
probable that future taxable profits will
be available to utilise those temporary
differences.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Institute assesses impairment of
all assets at each reporting date by
evaluating conditions specific to the
Institute and to the particular asset that
may lead to impairment. These include
the asset’s use and performance, future
expectations, economic and political
environments and the assessment of the
asset’s carrying value. If an impairment
trigger exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is determined. This involves
value-in-use calculations, which
incorporate a number of key estimates
and assumptions.
Provision for make good
Due to the long-term nature of the
provision for make good, the greatest
uncertainty is estimating the costs that
will ultimately be incurred.
(II) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Carrying amount of land and buildings
The Institute’s freehold property is
recorded at fair value as outlined in note
2(e)(ii) and note 8.
Long service leave provision
As disclosed in Note 2(i)(ii), the liability
for long service leave is recognised and
measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash flows to be made in
respect of all employees at balance date.
In determining the present value of the
liability, future estimates of attrition rates,
pay increases through promotion, and
inflation have been taken into account.
Allowance for impairment loss
on trade receivables
Where receivables are outstanding
beyond normal trading terms, the
likelihood of recovery of these receivables
is assessed by management on an
individual account basis. The impairment
loss is outlined in Note 7.

Estimation of useful lives of assets
The estimation of the useful lives of assets
has been based on historical experience
as well as future expectations on use,
lease terms (for leased equipment), and
turnover policies (for motor vehicles).
In addition, the condition of the assets
is assessed at least annually and
considered against their remaining useful
life. Adjustments to useful lives are made
when considered necessary. Depreciation
and/or amortisation charges are included
in Notes 8 and 9.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Institute’s principal financial
instruments are comprised of cash
and receivables.
The Institute manages its exposure to
key financial risks in accordance with its
financial risk management policy. The
objective of the policy is to support the
delivery of the Institute’s financial targets
while protecting future financial security.
The main risks arising from the Institute’s
financial instruments are:
• Market risk
• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk.
The Institute uses different methods to
measure and manage the risks to which
it is exposed. These include:
• Monitoring levels of exposure to interest
rates
• Monitoring assessments of market
forecasts for interest rates
• Ageing analysis and monitoring of
specific credit balances to manage
credit risk
• Liquidity risk monitoring through the
development of future rolling cash
flow forecasts.

MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. The main components
of market risk to the Institute are interest
rate risk and currency risk.
Interest rate risk refers to the risk
that movements in variable interest
rates will affect financial performance by
increasing interest expenses or reducing
interest income.
Interest rate risk arises from financial
assets and liabilities that are subject
to floating interest rates. The Institute’s
exposure to market interest rates relates
primarily to cash and cash equivalents.
Currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flow of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in exchange rates.
The Institute is exposed to currency
risk comprising of purchases and
contributions to the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) and
overseas member groups denominated
in a currency other than the AUD.
The Institute manages currency risk
by forecasting expected purchases
denominated in a foreign currency
and monitoring exchange rates.

The Institute has in place policies
for managing each of these risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES CONTINUED
At balance date, the Institute had the following exposure to interest rates:
PRINCIPAL
SUBJECT
TO FLOATING
INTEREST RATE

PRINCIPAL
SUBJECT
TO FIXED
INTEREST RATE

NON-INTEREST
BEARING

TOTAL

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

22,867

23,395

–

46,262

Trade receivables

-

–

3,483

3,483

Other receivables

-

–

318

318

22,867

23,395

3,801

50,063

Trade and other payables

–

–

(9,044)

(9,044)

Total financial liabilities

–

–

(9,044)

(9,044)

9,378

35,460

–

44,838

Trade receivables

-

–

3,027

3,027

Other receivables

-

–

1,526

1,526

9,378

35,460

4,553

49,391

Trade and other payables

–

–

(6,324)

(6,324)

Total financial liabilities

–

–

(6,324)

(6,324)

2014
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2013
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The average interest rate re-pricing on fixed term deposits is 171 days (2013: 216 days).
At balance date, the Institute had an immaterial amount of foreign currency and hence
the exposure to currency risk is not significant.
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The following sensitivity is based on interest rate risk exposures in existence at balance date.
A sensitivity of 50 basis points shift in a full year has been selected as this is considered reasonable
given the current level of short-term Australian interest rates.
At 30 June 2014, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables
held constant, post-tax surplus and members’ funds would have been affected as follows:
POST-TAX SURPLUS
INCREASE/(DECREASE)

MEMBERS’ FUNDS
INCREASE/(DECREASE)

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

If there was 50 basis points higher in interest rates
with all other variables held constant

231

224

231

224

If there was 50 basis points lower in interest rates
with all other variables held constant

(231)

(224)

(231)

(224)

JUDGMENT OF REASONABLY POSSIBLE MOVEMENTS

The Institute has an immaterial amount of foreign currency at 30 June and any reasonably possible
changes in foreign exchange rates will not have a material impact on post tax surplus and member funds.

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk refers to the loss that the Institute would incur if a debtor or other counterparty defaults under
its contractual obligations.
Credit risk would arise from the financial assets of the Institute, which include cash at bank, short-term
deposits and trade and other receivables. The Institute’s exposure to credit risk in relation to cash at bank
and short-term deposits is limited due to the practice of only depositing funds with any of the four major
Australian banks. The Institute’s exposure to credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables is limited
as there are a large number of low value individual debtors located in multiple geographical areas.
Receivable balances are monitored on a regular basis, with the result that the Institute’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.
Management believes that the Institute does not have a concentration of credit risk. The Institute’s
maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the cash at bank, short-term deposits
and receivables held.

LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of the Institute’s operational liquidity requirements,
the Institute:
• Will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the due date
• Will be forced to sell financial assets at a value less than what they are worth, or
• May be unable to settle or recover a financial asset.
To help reduce these risks, the Institute has a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average
level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained.
The Institute receives a substantial part of its cash inflows at the beginning and end of the financial
year and manages its expenditure within these cash inflows and approved funding arrangements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES CONTINUED
The following table details the Institute’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been prepared based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Institute can be required to pay.
LESS THAN 6
MONTHS

6 TO 12
MONTHS

1 TO 5
YEARS

TOTAL

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

(7,362)

(72)

(1,610)

(9,044)

(7,362)

(72)

(1,610)

(9,044)

(4,964)

(250)

(1,110)

(6,324)

(4,964)

(250)

(1,110)

(6,324)

2014
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

2013
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
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4. REVENUE AND EXPENSES
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

(A) REVENUE
Subscriptions and related revenue

50,927

48,471

Education and other services

43,668

44,606

Total revenue

94,595

93,077

754

1,050

OTHER INCOME

Rent
Royalties
Interest from other persons
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles

321

414

1,462

1,556

(3)

-

Total other income

2,534

3,020

Total revenue and other income

97,129

96,097

Building and plant

810

810

Furniture and equipment

498

494

317

441

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises

832

822

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises

437

437

7

17

2,901

3,021

933

924

Depreciation and amortisation of total property, plant and equipment and computer software

3,834

3,945

Operating lease expense on premises

2,259

2,218

41,827

37,514

3,081

2,903

44,908

40,417

30

8

3,026

2,536

(B) EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

Computer equipment

Motor vehicles
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of computer software

Employee benefits expense
Wages, salaries and termination costs
Superannuation

Bad debts written off
Pre-merger expenses excluding termination costs
Pre-merger expenses excluding termination costs consist of expenses in relation to the proposed
merger between the Institute and NZICA.
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5. INCOME TAX
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

(159)

(1,345)

12

(862)

(A) INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The major components of income tax are:
Current income tax (benefit)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
Tax losses carried forward to future years
Aggregate income tax expense

147

2,207

-

-

(B) NUMERICAL RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX BENEFIT RECOGNISED
IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME AND PRIMA FACIE INCOME TAX
Surplus/(deficit) before tax

498

(2,308)

Prima facie tax expense/(benefit) at the rate of 30% (2013: 30%)

149

(692)

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years

12

(862)

Entertainment

93

92

(401)

(745)

Mutual activities
Tax losses carried forward to future years
Aggregate income tax expense
At balance date, accumulated revenue tax losses of $23,493,000 (2013: $22,963,000) existed, giving
rise to a potential future tax benefit. The potential deferred tax asset attributable to the revenue tax
losses are not recognised, as realisation is not probable. The deferred tax asset for revenue tax losses,
which will offset future non-mutual income, will only be utilised if:

• Future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit
to be realised
• The conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with and
• No changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Institute in realising the benefit.
Net deferred tax liabilities not recognised in respect of temporary differences amount to $2,205,000
(2013: $451,000).
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147

2,207

-

-

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Cash at bank and on hand

22,867

9,378

Short-term deposits

23,395

35,460

46,262

44,838

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank which is at call and which
earned interest at floating rates and short-term deposits which earned interest at fixed rates.
At 30 June 2014, the Institute had no available borrowing facilities.

RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AFTER TAX TO NET CASH FLOWS
FROM OPERATIONS

Surplus/(deficit) after tax

498

(2,308)

2,901

3,021

3

-

933

924

(1,351)

(1,589)

2,486

2,356

597

871

2,720

120

3,141

825

Adjustment:
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Amortisation of intangible assets
Interest received

Changes in working capital:
Decrease in receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions
(Decrease)/increase in fees in advance

Net cash flows from operating activities

(8,216)

4,344

(1,758)

6,160

1,226

6,208
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7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

3,516

3,054

CURRENT

Trade receivables (a)
Allowance for impairment loss

(33)

(27)

3,483

3,027

318

1,526

2,674

2,519

6,475

7,072

Loan receivable

350

350

Provision for impairment

(350)

(350)

Non-trade receivables (b)
Other receivables
Prepayments
Total trade and other receivables
NON-CURRENT

Non-trade receivables (c)

Net loan receivable
(a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-day terms. A provision for
impairment loss has been made for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables determined by
assessment made by management when there is objective evidence that an individual trade receivable
is impaired. A net impairment charge of $36,000 (2013: $16,000) has been recognised by the Institute in
the current year. These amounts have been included in the other expenses line item in the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Included in the Institute’s trade receivables are debtors with a carrying amount of $1,395,000 (2013:
$591,000) which are past due at the reporting date but not considered impaired as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the Institute considers the amounts are still recoverable.
The Institute does not hold any collateral over these balances.
All other balances within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past
due. Based on the credit quality of these other receivables, it is expected that those amounts will be
received when due.
The Institute has no receivables with renegotiated credit terms that would have been past due under
the original terms and conditions.
(b) Current non-trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing and are normally payable at call.
There are no non-trade receivables that are past due at the reporting date.
(c) The Institute, in conjunction with CPA Australia and the Institute of Public Accountants, has lent funds
to the Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) as agreed under a Memorandum of Understanding.
The non-current loan to AAT is $350,000 before interest, which is charged monthly based on the
90-day bank bill rate plus 0.5%. Management has assessed the AAT loan, and an impairment provision
has been created for the entire amount. The first repayment instalment is due on 30 June 2016.
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-

-

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2,088

2,436

31 – 60 days

841

360

61 – 90 days

359

115

> 90 days

195

116

1,395

591

31 – 60 days

-

-

61 – 90 days

-

-

33

27

33

27

3,516

3,054

Balance at beginning of financial year

27

19

Net charge for the year

36

16

Amounts written off

(30)

(8)

Balance at end of financial year

33

27

At 30 June, the ageing analysis of trade debtors and other receivables is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired:

Past due and impaired

> 90 days

Total
Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

56,200

48,000

5,210

5,191

(3,573)

(3,115)

1,637

2,076

Computer equipment – at cost

3,503

3,543

Less: Accumulated depreciation

(3,324)

(3,087)

Freehold property – at fair value
Furniture and equipment – at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

179

456

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises – at cost

8,645

8,214

Less: Accumulated depreciation

(5,320)

(4,488)

3,325

3,726

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises – at cost

4,222

4,613

Less: Accumulated amortisation

(2,175)

(2,138)

2,047

2,475

Motor vehicles – at cost

94

94

Less: Accumulated depreciation

(94)

(87)

Total property, plant and equipment
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-

7

63,388

56,740

RECONCILIATIONS
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

48,000

50,000

FREEHOLD PROPERTY

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Increment/(decrement)
Depreciation expense

9,010
(810)

(1,190)
(810)

56,200

48,000

2,076

2,111

Additions

61

486

Disposals

(2)

(27)

(498)

(494)

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

Depreciation expense

1,637

2,076

456

712

41

188

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

(1)

(3)

(317)

(441)

179

456

3,726

4,548

431

-

FIXTURES AND FITTINGS ON FREEHOLD PREMISES

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Additions
Depreciation expense

(832)

(822)

3,325

3,726

2,475

2,907

10

5

FIXTURES AND FITTINGS ON LEASEHOLD PREMISES

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Additions
Disposals
Amortisation

(1)
(437)
2,047

(437)
2,475
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

7

24

(7)

(17)

-

7

56,740

60,302

543

679

9,010

(1,190)

MOTOR VEHICLES

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Depreciation expense

TOTAL

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Additions
Increment/(decrement)
Disposals

(4)

(30)

Depreciation expense

(2,464)

(2,584)

Amortisation expense

(437)

(437)

Carrying amount at end of the financial year

63,388

(A) MOTOR VEHICLES
Motor vehicles are either provided to certain senior staff in accordance with approved employment
arrangements or purchased for marketing purposes.

(B) VALUATION TECHNIQUES, INPUTS AND PROCESSES
The fair value of freehold property is at Directors’ valuation and has taken into account an independent
valuation undertaken as at 30 June 2014 based upon a comparable market approach and depreciated
replacement cost. The valuation was carried out by McGees Property (NSW) Pty Ltd for the current financial
year and Cushman & Wakefield (NSW) Pty Limited in the previous financial year.
The valuation technique for freehold property and the inputs used in fair value measurement are disclosed
in the table below:
VALUATION TECHNIQUE

KEY INPUTS

Market Approach- Land is valued based on
comparable property sales transactions and where
identical properties are not available, adjustments
have been made to reflect the following
characteristic of the asset: location, topography,
construction, age, condition, size and enhancements

• Comparable property sales values
• Adjustments for location, topography,
construction, age, condition and size
• Adjustments for enhancements
• Construction costs from similar buildings
• Adjustments for construction, condition
and size

Depreciated replacement cost (DRC) – Building
is valued based on a DRC. DRC is the current
replacement cost of an asset less accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to
reflect the already consumed or expired economic
benefit, or obsolescence of the asset.

There has been no change in the valuation technique in the current or previous financial year.
The highest and best use of the assets is its current use.
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56,740

(C) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The entire freehold property amount is categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, as the adjustments made to the observable
data of comparable properties are considered significant and require judgment to be exercised by the valuer.
Level 3 inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
LEVEL 1

LEVEL 2

LEVEL 3

TOTAL FAIR
VALUE

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

-

-

56,200

56,200

-

-

56,200

56,200

-

-

48,000

48,000

-

-

48,000

48,000

2014
Freehold Property

2013
Freehold Property

(D) RECONCILIATION OF LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The entire freehold property amount is categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. There were no
transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the current or previous financial year.

(E) SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS ON UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS

Positive and negative adjustments for location,
topography, construction, age , condition, and
size. These adjustments are made by the external
valuer and requires judgment to be exercised by the
external valuer. The cumulative net impact of these
adjustments are -11.4% to 10.0% of the total value of
the freehold property.

SENSITIVITY OF FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
TO CHANGES IN UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS

Significant increases in the positive adjustments or
decreases in the negative adjustments would result
in a higher fair value of freehold property.
Significant decreases in the positive adjustments
or increases in the negative adjustment would
result in a lower value of freehold property.
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9. INTANGIBLES
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Computer software

5,763

5,152

Less: Accumulated amortisation

(4,401)

(3,468)

1,362

1,684

1,684

1,532

Additions

611

1,078

Disposals

-

RECONCILIATION

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

Amortisation
Carrying amount at end of the financial year

(933)

(2)
(924)

1,362

1,684

27,946

35,804

7,463

7,753

655

723

36,064

44,280

Trade payables

4,759

3,489

Other payables

2,531

1,225

Lease liabilities

144

500

7,434

5,214

1,610

1,110

1,610

1,110

10. FEES IN ADVANCE
Members’ fees
Development course fees
Other

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
CURRENT

NON-CURRENT

Lease liabilities

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether or not billed to the Institute. Payables are normally settled on 30-day terms and no
interest is incurred on these payables.
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12. PROVISIONS
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

6,844

3,527

6,844

3,527

Employee entitlements

593

801

Make good provision

453

421

1,046

1,222

421

390

Arising during year

-

-

Utilised during the year

-

-

32

31

453

421

CURRENT

Employee entitlements

NON-CURRENT

RECONCILIATION OF MAKE GOOD PROVISION

Balance at beginning of financial year

Discount rate adjustment
Balance at end of financial year
In accordance with the lease agreements with various third parties, the Institute must restore leased
premises in various locations to their original condition before the cessation of their respective lease terms.
Due to the long-term nature of the liability, the greatest uncertainty in estimating the make good provision
is the costs that will ultimately be incurred.

13. RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUSES
NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
The property revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements in the value of the property.
The reserves are is not distributable to members under the terms of the Supplemental Royal Charter of the Institute.
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Balance at beginning of the financial year

7,387

8,577

Increment/(decrement) on revaluation of property (refer Note 8)

9,010

(1,190)

16,397

7,387

47,594

49,902

MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES:
PROPERTY REVALUATION RESERVE

Balance at end of the financial year
MOVEMENTS IN ACCUMULATED SURPLUSES:

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus/(deficit) after tax
Balance at end of the financial year

498
48,092

(2,308)
47,594
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14. COMMITMENTS
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Within one year

2,597

2,215

After one year but not later than five years

7,579

9,064

More than five years

1,356

2,467

11,532

13,746

Within one year

1,325

945

After one year but not later than five years

2,469

148

294

41

4,088

1,134

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

1,033

1,025

OPERATING LEASES – STATE BRANCH OFFICE SPACE

The leases are all non-cancellable operating leases. Four leases are subject
to market review at set intervals of which three leases have renewal options.
EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

More than five years

Expenditure commitments relate to the Institute’s IT software licence fees, subscriptions and contributions
to universities for research.

ACCOUNTING PROFESSIONAL & ETHICAL STANDARDS BOARD (APESB)
The Institute, in conjunction with CPA Australia and the Institute of Public Accountants, contributes funds to
the APESB as agreed under a Memorandum of Agreement. The Institute expects to contribute an amount
of $461,260 (2014: $448,915) during the 2015 financial year.

15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Indemnities for bank guarantees to the lessors of premises occupied under operating leases
The Institute has provided a letter of comfort to NZICA for liabilities incurred in the normal course of business
and for which NZICA is otherwise unable to obtain facilities through normal commercials means. The letter
of comfort expires on the earlier of the amalgamation of the two Institutes or 30 September 2015.
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16. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
2014
$

2013
$

175,831

175,831

-

26,523

175,831

202,354

315,365

130,000

IT design and controls review

-

5,535

Tax services

-

5,000

567

30,000

315,932

170,535

Audit of financial statements
Review of non-financial information in annual report
Total audit and review services
Other services:
Pre merger due diligence and consulting costs

Other services

The auditor also provided audit services to the Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited,
Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and the Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund
on an honorary basis.

17. UNLISTED SHARES IN OTHER ENTITIES
The Institute has an interest in the following corporations:
PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP
2014

2013

Australia

100%

100%

Australia

100%

100%

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Accrued wages, salaries and on-costs

1,469

825

Provisions (current)

6,844

3,527

593

801

8,906

5,153

NAME OF CORPORATION

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

ICAA Nominees Pty Limited
Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited

ICAA Nominees Pty Limited is dormant and has not been consolidated as it is considered to be not significant.
The Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and
Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund have not been consolidated as the Institute does
not have the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from the activities
of these entities.

18. EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS AND SUPERANNUATION ARRANGEMENTS

THE AGGREGATE EMPLOYMENT LIABILITY IS COMPRISED OF:

Provisions (non-current)
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FAIR VALUES
The estimated net fair values of financial assets and liabilities held at balance date are represented by their carrying
amounts. The net fair value of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the asset could be exchanged or
the liability settled in a current transaction between willing parties after allowing for transaction costs.
Financial assets and liabilities by categories:

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
MEASURED AT
TOTAL
AMORTISED COST

FINANCIAL LIABILITY
MEASURED AT
AMORTISED COST

NOTES

$’000

$’000

$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

6

46,262

46,262

-

Trade receivables

7

3,483

3,483

-

Other receivables

7

318

318

-

Total current financial assets

50,063

50,063

-

Total financial assets

50,063

50,063

-

2014
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

11

(7,434)

-

(7,434)

11

(1,610)

-

(1,610)

Total financial liabilities

(9,044)

-

(9,044)

Net financial assets/(liabilities)

41,019

50,063

(9,044)

Non-current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

2013
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

6

44,838

44,838

-

Trade receivables

7

3,027

3,027

-

Other receivables

7

1,526

1,526

-

Total current financial assets

49,391

49,391

-

Total financial assets

49,391

49,391

-

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

11

(5,214)

-

(5,214)

11

(1,110)

-

(1,110)

(6,324)

-

(6,324)

49,391

(6,324)

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities
Net financial assets/(liabilities)
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43,067

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Institute made payments of a nature detailed below to certain parties, including partners or
employees of Director-related entities. The payments were made to all parties on the same terms
and conditions:
• Gifts and fees to guest speakers at Training & Development events
• Author, group leader, reviewer, examination setting and examination marking fees in respect
of the Chartered Accountants Program modules
• Reviewer fees in respect of the Quality Review Program.
The Institute also received fees from certain parties, including Director-related entities. The fees were
received from all parties under the same terms and conditions. The fees include registration fees for
attendance at Training & Development events, fees in respect of enrolment of students in Chartered
Accountants Program modules, Quality Review Program, fees in respect of attendances at networking
functions and Membership subscriptions.
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with Director-related
entities for the relevant financial year.
All the following transactions were carried out on normal terms and conditions during the year:
DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR-RELATED ENTITY

TRANSACTION DETAIL AND TERMS

T Gullifer FCA

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Professional Services

M Waldron FCA

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Presentation of educational courses,
contributions and consultancy fees

D Scammell FCA

KPMG

Preparation and presentation of educational
courses and exam supervision fees

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

9

44

154

257

3

102

The Institute also has related party transactions with the Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation
Limited, Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and the Chartered Accountants Necessitous
Circumstances Fund.
The Institute incurred $44 (2013: $2,000) of fees on behalf of the Chartered Accountants Benevolent
Foundation Limited.
The Institute also provides complimentary accounting and administration services for the Chartered
Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and the
Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund.
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21. DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES
(A) DETAILS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
(I) DIRECTORS

M Ashton FCA
D Scammell FCA
A Waters FCA
M Blake FCA
M Forde FCA
P Green FCA
L Dowling CA
B Miels FCA
M Waldron FCA
D Robjent FCA

Appointed 1 January 2014

T Gullifer FCA

Retired 31 December 2013

B Kaufmann FCA

Retired 31 December 2013

At year end 30 June 2014 the transition to the new Executive team in preparation for the New Zealand amalgamation was complete
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(II) EXECUTIVES

L White FCA

Chief Executive Officer

P Reddy FCA

Chief Operating Officer

Resigned 25 July 2014

K Picard FCA

Chief Financial Officer

Appointed 27 January 2014

W Zammit

Head of Governance

R Ward FCA

Head of Leadership & Advocacy

Appointed 22 January 2014

J Dale CA

Head of Education

Appointed 5 May 2014

W Palmer FCA

Director of International Relations

Resigned 31 January 2014

S Grant FCA

General Manager Members

L Morta

Chief Information Officer

A Evans FCA

General Manager of Admissions Programs

Y El-Ansary CA

General Manager Leadership & Quality

Resigned 15 November 2013

B Bell

General Manager Strategy and Business Excellence

Resigned 31 December 2013

T Fisher

General Manager Sales and Marketing

Resigned 1 July 2014

J Abbott

Head of Human Resources

A McCotter

General Manager Learning & Business Solutions

Resigned 4 July 2014

H Black

Head of Corporate Communications

Resigned 31 March 2014

L Whitney

General Manager Australia & Overseas

Appointed 12 May 2014

S Carpenter

General Manager Lifelong Learning

Appointed 28 April 2014

P Ellenger

General Manager for Queensland

A MacDonald

General Manager for New South Wales

M Jones

General Manager for South Australia & Northern Territory

R Le Grande

General Manager for Australian Capital Territory

D Pittard

General Manager for Victoria & Tasmania

G Arcus

General Manager for Western Australia

D Chambers CA

Head of Finance

V Stojanovska

General Legal Counsel
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21. DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES
(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
(I) COMPENSATION POLICY

Remuneration of the Directors and senior management is determined and approved by the Executive
Remuneration Committee, which also reviews remuneration levels for all employees. The Committee
is appointed by the Board and consists of four members of the Board (currently the President, Deputy
President, Chairman of the Governance Committee and Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee).
To ensure equity in our remuneration decisions the Institute uses salary bands to establish remuneration
ranges for jobs of similar value. The Institute benchmarks jobs for job sizing using a well-established
methodology that provides remuneration ranges for salary bands based on job size. In structuring
remuneration ranges the Institute aims to remain competitive and positioned appropriately for the scope
and size of its operations.
The benchmark that the Institute bases Directors’ remuneration is:
• President: 25% - 40% of the total salary package of the Auditor-General of the Commonwealth of Australia
• Deputy President: Up to 50% of the remuneration of the President
• Directors: Up to 50% of the remuneration of the Deputy President.
(II) COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES FOR THE YEAR
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

5,927

5,232

33

237

380

70

6,340

5,539

2014
NUMBER

2013
NUMBER

– $29,999

1

5

$30,000 – $59,999

7

5

$60,000 – $89,999

2

2

$100,000 – $119,999

1

-

$120,000 – $129,999

-

1

$150,000 – $159,000

11

-

COMPENSATION BY CATEGORY
Short-term benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

THE NUMBER OF DIRECTORS WHOSE REMUNERATION FALLS
WITHIN THE FOLLOWING BANDS IS:
$0
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THE NUMBER OF EXECUTIVES WHOSE REMUNERATION FALLS WITHIN
THE FOLLOWING BANDS IS:
$0

– $49,999

$50,000

– $99,999

2014
NUMBER

2013
NUMBER

2

1

1

3

$100,000 – $149,999

3

2

$150,000 – $199,999

11

6

$200,000 – $249,999

3

3

$250,000 – $299,999

2

4

$300,000 – $349,999

1

2

$350,000 – $399,999

1

1

$400,000 – $449,999

1

-

$550,000 – $599,999

-

1

$750,000 – $799,999

1

-

(III) LOANS TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

There are no loans between key management personnel and the Institute.
(IV) OTHER TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND THEIR PERSONALLY RELATED
ENTITIES

There are no other transactions with key management personnel or their personally related entities.

22. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The By-laws of the Institute indemnify the Directors and Officers, and provide that each Director and Officer:
• Shall be indemnified against any losses or expenses that such a Director or Officer incurs or becomes liable to pay
by reason of any act or deed done by the Director or Officer in the discharge of that Director’s or Officer’s duties,
except to the extent that such act or deed arises from the Director’s or Officer’s own wilful default
• Shall not be liable for the acts of any person or for joining in any receipt or document or for any act of conformity or
for any loss or expense happening to the Institute unless it arises from the Director’s or Officer’s own wilful default.

23. MEMBERS AND MEMBERS’ LIABILITY
Total membership at 30 June 2014 is 63,683 (2013: 61,312).
In terms of the Institute’s Charter and By-laws:
• Members are not entitled to receive a dividend from the Institute
• Members who cease to be members remain liable to the Institute for all monies which at the time of ceasing to be
a member were due by that member to the Institute.

24. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE
On 1 July 2014 the Institute, along with NZICA, launched the new brand; Chartered Accountants Australia New Zealand.
The new brand is being used jointly by the Institute and NZICA in anticipation of the amalgamation of the two entities
and the renaming of the Institute as Chartered Accountants Australia New Zealand.
The Accounting Infrastructure Reform bill 2014, which is required for NZICA to merge with the Institute, is expected to be
considered by the New Zealand Parliament following the New Zealand general election, which occurred in September 2014.
Apart from the above mentioned event, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and
the date of this Financial Report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of
the Directors of the Institute, to affect significantly the operations of the Institute or the state of affairs of the Institute in
future financial years.
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Directors’ declaration
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

The Directors of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia declare that the Financial Statements and
Notes set out on pages 28 – 59, which have been prepared as required under the By-laws of the Institute:
(a) Comply with Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements
(b) Present fairly the financial position of the Institute as at 30 June 2014 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
In the opinion of the Directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Institute will be able to pay
its debts as and when they become due and payable.

M Ashton FCA
President
Sydney, 23 October 2014
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D Scammell FCA
Deputy President

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia

Independent auditor’s report to the
members of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia
We have audited the accompanying financial report of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia (the Institute), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the Directors’ Declaration.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL REPORT
The Directors of the Institute are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Report in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and in accordance with the By-laws of the
Institute. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the Financial Report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 2, the Directors also state
that the financial report, comprising the Financial Statements and Notes, complies with Australian Accounting Standards.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Report.
The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENCE
In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Australian professional accounting bodies.

AUDITOR’S OPINION
In our opinion the financial report of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia:
1. Presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia as at
30 June 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
2. The Financial Report also complies with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations)
as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

Ernst & Young

Meredith Scott FCA
Partner
Sydney,
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CONTACT DETAILS
Customer Service Centre – 1300 137 322

NATIONAL OFFICE
/NEW SOUTH WALES

SOUTH AUSTRALIA
/NORTHERN TERRITORY

33 Erskine Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Westpac Building
Level 29, 91 King William Street
Adelaide SA 5000

GPO Box 9985 Sydney NSW 2001
PHONE
FAX

02 9290 1344
02 9262 1512

AUSTRALIAN CAPITAL
TERRITORY

GPO Box 9985 Adelaide SA 5001
PHONE
FAX

08 8113 5500
08 8231 1982

VICTORIA/TASMANIA

Level 10, 60 Marcus Clarke Street
Canberra ACT 2601

Level 3, 600 Bourke Street
Melbourne Vic 3000

GPO Box 9985 Canberra ACT 2601

GPO Box 9985 Melbourne Vic 3001

PHONE
FAX

02 6122 6100
02 6122 6122

QUEENSLAND

PHONE
FAX

03 9641 7400
03 9670 3143

WESTERN AUSTRALIA

Level 32, Central Plaza One
345 Queen Street Brisbane Qld 4000

Level 11, 2 Mill Street
Perth WA 6000

GPO Box 9985 Brisbane Qld 4001

GPO Box 9985 Perth WA 6848

PHONE
FAX

07 3233 6500
07 3233 6555

charteredaccountants.com.au

PHONE
FAX

08 9420 0400
08 9321 5141

